



An Exelon Company

Richard G. Webster, Jr.
Vice President

Telephone 215.841.4000
Fax 215.841.6208
www.peco.com
dick.webster@peco-energy.com

PECO
Regulatory Policy and Strategy
2301 Market Street
S15
Philadelphia, PA 19103

November 18, 2015

Rosemary Chiavetta, Secretary
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission
Commonwealth Keystone Building
400 North Street
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17120

Re: Supplement No. 139 to Tariff Electric – PA PUC No. 4, Effective January 17, 2016
Compliance filing to update Tariff with Chapter 14 Changes at Docket No. M-2014-2448824

Dear Secretary Chiavetta:

Pursuant to the Commission's Chapter 14 Implementation Final Order ("the Order") at Docket No. M-2014-2448824, PECO Energy Company ("PECO") is filing Supplement No. 139 to Tariff Electric – PA PUC No. 4, bearing an effective date of January 17, 2016.

This tariff filing reflects changes required by the Order related to billing and payment practices. PECO has revised the language related to rules 5.5 - Return of Deposit and 5.6 - Interest on Deposits to reflect the timing and release requirements for a returned deposit and the calculation of interest on deposits held. PECO has also added rule 14.11 - Manual Meter Reading Fee to establish a fee for manual meter read requests by customers at the time of connect or disconnect. This filing also includes a minor clarification on language related to rule 17.10 – Returned Payment Charge.

Concurrent with this filing, PECO is also filing similar changes to its Gas tariff to comply with Chapter 14.

The following attachment is included in support of this filing:

Attachment A: Revised Tariff Pages

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call me.

Sincerely

A handwritten signature in black ink, appearing to read "RW", with a long horizontal flourish extending to the right.

cc: C. Walker-Davis, Director, Office of Special Assistants
P. T. Diskin, Director, Bureau of Technical Utility Services
D. P. Hosler, Director, Bureau of Audits
J. E. Simms, Director, Bureau of Investigation & Enforcement
Office of Consumer Advocate
Office of Small Business Advocate
McNees, Wallace & Nurick

ATTACHMENT A

PECO Energy Company

Electric Service Tariff

COMPANY OFFICE LOCATION

2301 Market Street

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19101

For List of Communities Served, See Page 4.

Issued November 18, 2015

Effective January 17, 2016

**ISSUED BY: C. L. Adams – President & CEO
PECO Energy Distribution Company
2301 MARKET STREET
PHILADELPHIA, PA. 19101**

NOTICE

LIST OF CHANGES MADE BY THIS SUPPLEMENT

CREDIT – Third Revised Page No. 14

Changes to the timing and release of Residential deposits (rule 5.5) and changes to the Residential interest on deposits calculation (rule 5.6) due to Chapter 14 Order at Docket No. M-2014-2448824.

METERING – Fourth Revised Page No. 22

Established a fee for manual meter read (rule 14.11) requests by customers at the time of connect or disconnect as a result of the Chapter 14 Order at Docket No. M-2014-2448824.

BILLING AND STANDARD PAYMENT OPTIONS – Sixth Revised Page No. 25

Added clarifying language that electronic payments are eligible for returned payment charges (rule 17.10).

PECO Energy Company

TABLE OF CONTENTS

List of Communities Served.....	4
How to Use Loose-Leaf Tariff.....	5
Definition of Terms and Explanation of Abbreviations.....	6 ² ,7,8 ² ,9
RULES AND REGULATIONS:	
1. The Tariff.....	10 ²
2. Service Limitations.....	10 ²
3. Customer's Installation.....	11 ¹
4. Application for Service.....	12
5. Credit.....	13 ²
6. Private-Property Construction.....	14 ³
7. Extensions.....	15 ¹ ,16
8. Rights-of-Way.....	17
9. Introduction of Service.....	18 ¹
10. Company Equipment.....	18 ¹
11. Tariff and Contract Options.....	19 ¹
12. Service Continuity.....	20 ¹
13. Customer's Use of Service.....	21
14. Metering.....	21
15. Demand Determination.....	22 ⁴
16. Meter Tests.....	23
17. Billing and Standard Payment Options.....	24 ⁵
18. Payment Terms & Termination of Service.....	25 ⁶
19. Unfulfilled Contracts.....	25 ⁵
20. Cancellation by Customer.....	26 ¹
21. General.....	27 ²
22. Rules For Designation of Procurement Class.....	27 ²
23. EGS Switching.....	28 ²
24. Load Data Exchange.....	29
STATE TAX ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE.....	30 ⁵
Generation Supply Adjustment For Procurement Class 1, 2, 3.....	31 ²⁵ , 32 ²⁴
Generation Supply Adjustment For Procurement Class 4.....	33A ³²
Reconciliation.....	34 ⁸
Provision for Surcharge Recovery of Alternative Energy Portfolio Standard Costs.....	35 ⁵ , 36 ⁴
NUCLEAR DECOMMISSIONING COST ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (NDCA).....	37 ¹
Provisions for Recovery of UNIVERSAL SERVICE FUND CHARGE (USFC).....	38 ⁷
Provisions for Recovery of SUPPLEMENTAL UNIVERSAL SERVICE FUND COSTS.....	39 ¹
PROVISION FOR THE RECOVERY OF CONSUMER EDUCATION PLAN COSTS.....	40 ⁶
TRANSMISSION SERVICE CHARGE.....	40A ¹¹
NON-BYPASSABLE TRANSMISSION CHARGE (NBT).....	40AA ¹
SMART METER COST RECOVERY SURCHARGE.....	40B ⁷
PROVISION FOR THE RECOVERY OF ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND CONSERVATION PROGRAM COSTS (EEPC).....	40C ⁷
Provision for the Tax Accounting Repair Credit (TARC).....	40D ¹
PROVISION FOR THE RECOVERY OF ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND CONSERVATION PROGRAM COSTS PHASE II.....	40E
RATES:	
Rate R Residence Service.....	41 ²²
Rate R-H Residential Heating Service.....	43 ²²
Rate RS-2 Net Metering.....	44 ¹ , 45 ²
Rate OP Off-Peak Service.....	46 ⁴
Rate GS General Service.....	47 ¹⁷ , 48 ³ , 49 ²
Rate PD Primary-Distribution Power.....	50 ¹⁴
Rate HT High-Tension Power.....	51 ¹⁵
Rate POL Private Outdoor Lighting.....	52 ⁵ , 53
Rate SL-S Street Lighting-Suburban Counties.....	57 ⁵ , 58
Rate SL-E Street Lighting Customer-Owned Facilities.....	59 ⁷ , 60
Rate TLCL Traffic Lighting Constant Load Service.....	61 ⁷
Rate BLI Borderline Interchange Service.....	62
Rate EP Electric Propulsion.....	63 ¹⁰
Rate AL Alley Lighting in City of Philadelphia.....	64 ⁵
RIDERS:	
Applicability Index of Riders.....	65 ³
Auxiliary Service Rider.....	66 ¹ , 67 ² , 68 ¹
CAP Rider - Customer Assistance Program.....	69 ³⁴ , 70 ¹⁸
Casualty Rider.....	71 ¹
Commercial/Industrial Direct Load Control Program Rider.....	71A ¹ , 71B ¹
Construction Rider.....	72

RULES AND REGULATIONS (continued)

5.5 RETURN OF DEPOSIT. Deposits secured from a residential customer shall either be applied with interest to the customer's account or returned to the customer with interest in accordance with 66 Pa. C.S. §1404(C) and applicable Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission regulations. In cases of discontinuance or termination of service, deposits will be returned with accrued interest upon payment of all service charges and guarantees or with deduction of unpaid accounts. Deposits secured from a residential customer, plus accrued interest, which may be held until a timely payment history is established, are refunded when a ratepayer is not currently delinquent and has made on time and in full payments for service provided by the Company for 12 consecutive months. Deposits secured from a non-residential customer, plus accrued interest, which may be held until a timely payment history is established, are refunded when a ratepayer is not currently delinquent and has made on time and in full payments for service provided by the Company for 24 consecutive months. Any residential or commercial customer having secured the return of the deposit may be required to make another deposit in accordance with Commission statutes, regulations or Federal Bankruptcy Law if the Customer demonstrates bad credit or lacks creditworthiness subsequent to the return of the initial deposit. (C)

5.6 INTEREST ON DEPOSIT. The Company will allow simple interest on cash deposits calculated as follows:

(1) with respect to residential accounts, interest will be computed at the simple annual rate determined by the Secretary of Revenue for interest on the underpayment of tax under Section 806 of the Act of April 19, 1929 (P.L. 343, No. 176), known as the Fiscal Code. (C)

(2) with respect to commercial and industrial accounts, at the lower of the Interest Index or six percent;

Deposits shall cease to bear interest upon discontinuance of service (or, if earlier, when the Company closes the account).

5.7 CREDIT INFORMATION.

CUSTOMERS: In addition to information required otherwise hereunder, customers for whom the Company provides Consolidated EDC Billing or Separate EDC Billing shall be required to provide to the Company with such credit information, as the Company requires. The Company may report to a national credit bureau on credit history associated with past due amounts.

APPLICANTS: The Company's credit and application procedures for applicants are as follows: (1) positive identification of applicant obtained from previous customer record or through one of the major credit reporting bureaus or through in-person identification; (2) determination of liability for a past due balance; (3) determination if a deposit is required based upon applicant's previous account history if available or through third party credit scoring of applicant.

The Company's credit scoring methodology and standards are as follows: The Company uses a commercially recognized credit scoring methodology that is within the range of generally accepted industry practice. The applicant's or customer's utility payment history determines the credit score. The Company uses this customer-specific credit score to either request or waive a security deposit.

5.8 APPLICABILITY TO CUSTOMERS RESIDING AT PLACE OF BUSINESS. For purposes of all of the provisions of this Rule 5, when a customer resides at a place of business or commercial establishment, legitimately served pursuant to a commercial or industrial rate schedule, that is not a residential dwelling unit attached thereto, the customer is not thereby entitled to any of the protections in the Pennsylvania Public Utility Code or the Commission's regulations implementing the Pennsylvania Public Utility Code, or to any of the provisions of these rules or this Tariff, that apply exclusively to deposits for residential customers.

6. PRIVATE PROPERTY CONSTRUCTION

6.1 COMPANY'S SERVICE LINES. Where the Company has distribution facilities of adequate capacity on the highway or in other trunk line location adjacent to the premises to be served, it will provide, own and maintain standard service-supply lines as follows: (a) **UNDERGROUND:**

Underground cable construction to a point approximately 18 inches inside the property line of the customer, except:

(1) For secondary service to new residences or new apartment buildings, underground cable construction will be extended to a meter location or connection box located at the building or buildings, as designated by the Company and in accordance with Rule 7.3.

(2) The Company will make necessary repairs to customer-owned extensions of secondary service-supply lines for residential customers at no charge. If such customer-owned extension requires replacement, the Company will make the replacement and assume ownership of the service-supply line with the Company bearing the cost up to 200 feet in length and the customer bearing the cost for all additional length.

(b) **AERIAL:** A single span of aerial open wire or cable construction to the first suitable support of the customer, nominally 100 feet inside the property line of the customer. The customer's support shall be so located that the service span will be free of obstruction and adequately supported as required by the size and weight of the conductors.

6.2 SERVICE -SUPPLY ALTERATIONS. Changes related to a service-supply line or a meter owned by the Company, for the accommodation of the customer, shall be at the expense of the customer.

6.3 CUSTOMER'S SERVICE EXTENSION. The customer shall provide, own and maintain the service extension from the Company's service-supply lines to the receiving equipment.

6.4 METERS AND TRANSFORMERS. The Company will provide, own and maintain any meter or meters, and also the transformer or transformers (both potential and current type transformers), required in the supply of service of the current characteristics specified by the Base Rate or rider under which the service is provided, unless the customer receives Advanced Meter Services from an AMSP in that case such AMSP will install, provide, own, and/or maintain the Customer's meter or meters while the Company will continue to own the potential and current type transformers. The supply of transformers by the Company shall be limited to those required for a single standard transformation.

6.5 TRAILER PARKS. Where it is established by plans, development, use or other facts that the operation of a trailer park is predominantly to provide rental locations for non-transient trailers, with not less than two nor more than four such locations, the Company, upon written application of the trailer park operator and upon the receipt of an enabling agreement and of adequate rights-of-way, will construct, own and operate within the trailer park specified aerial electric energy, the trailer park operator being liable for payment of service to trailer park tenants not contracting in writing for service in their own names. The Company's obligation to install or extend such distribution facilities within the trailer park is limited to the investment warranted by the anticipated revenue. Alterations of such distribution facilities at the request of the park operator when not for the purpose of serving additional trailer rental locations will be at the cost of the trailer park operator. A trailer park operator desiring underground distribution facilities within a trailer park consisting of less than five locations must bear the excess cost incident thereto. Specifications and terms for such underground construction will be furnished by the Company on request. In new trailer parks consisting of five or more locations, underground distribution facilities will be extended in accordance with Rule 7.3.

(C) Denotes Change

RULES AND REGULATIONS (continued)

14.4 POWER FACTOR MEASUREMENT. For customers for whom the Company is providing metering and meter reading or Advanced Meter Services, the Company reserves the right to measure the power factor of the customer's load, either by test or by permanently installed instruments. For customers for whom an AMSP is providing Advanced Meter Services, the Company reserves the right to require such AMSP to measure the power factor of the load of the customer on the same basis the Company measures the power factor of customers for which the Company provides metering and meter reading or Advanced Meter Services.

14.5 REVERSE REGISTRATION. The Company may, by ratchet or other device, control its meters to prevent reverse registration.

14.6 ESTIMATED USAGE. The kilowatt-hours and billing demands to be paid for may be determined by computation instead of by measurement in the case of installations having a fixed load or demand value controlled to operate for a definite number of hours each day.

14.7 METER READING INTERVALS. The Company will read its meters in accordance with Appendix C to the Joint Petition for Full Settlement and at scheduled regular intervals of one month. Monthly customer usage will not be prorated for seasonality. For customers for whom it provides Consolidated EDC Billing or Separate EDC Billing, the Company will render standard bills for the recorded use of service based upon the time interval between meter readings. EGS & EDC charges shall be based on the EDC defined meter reading route schedules. Only those bills which cover a period of service of less than 27 days or more than 34 days will be prorated. The Company will render "short period" bills as needed to ensure a customer can switch their electric service in accordance with the accelerated switching process final omitted rulemaking order that amends 52 Pa. Code, Ch. 57.172 – 57.179. See Dockets No. L-2014-2409383 and P-2014-2446292.

14.8 ESTIMATED USAGE. For customers for whom the Company provides meter reading or Advanced Meter Reading Services, the Company shall estimate the amount of service supplied to premises where access to the meter is not available or if such estimate is necessary, and to installations at remote locations when warranted by the type of installation, regularity of usage, or other circumstances. For customers for whom it provides Consolidated EDC Billing or Separate EDC Billing, the Company will render bills in standard form based on such estimate and so marked, for the customer's acceptance. Meter readings will be secured from time to time and billing will be revised when they disclose that the estimate failed to approximate the actual usage. For residential customers, an actual meter reading will be obtained at least every six months in accordance with Commission regulations.

14.9 CUSTOMER SELECTED ADVANCED METERS. A customer may request either PECO Energy or an AMSP to have an Advanced Meter installed and have Advanced Meter Services provided pursuant to Appendix C of the Joint Petition for Full Settlement and any applicable rules adopted by the Commission. For an advanced meter to be deployed in the PECO Energy service territory, it must be included in the Commission's Advanced Meter Catalog, and indicated as eligible for deployment in the PECO Energy territory.

14.10 PROVISIONS FOR CUSTOMER REQUESTED SMART METERS. Once all necessary infrastructure is complete but not later than October 2012 a customer may request that PECO install a smart meter ahead of the planned schedule for their property however the customer must pay the incremental cost of installing the meter outside of the normal installation schedule. For residential and single phase commercial customers the cost is \$17. In the case of more complex meter arrangements the Company shall provide the estimated cost and the customer shall pay the cost prior to the installation.

14.11 MANUAL METER READING FEE Upon customer request, the Company will secure an in-person meter reading to confirm the accuracy of an automatic meter reading when a customer disconnects service or a new service request is received. The fee is \$45 and the Company will include this fee on the customer's or applicant's bill. (C)

15. DEMAND DETERMINATION

15.1 MEASURED DEMANDS. Measured demands may be quantified by recording or indicating instruments showing, unless otherwise specified, the greatest 30-minute rate-of-use of energy, provided that in the case of hoists, elevators, welding machine, electric furnaces, or other installations where the use of electricity is intermittent or subject to violent fluctuation the demand may be fixed by special determination.

15.2 DEMAND DETERMINATION.

- (a) Special Determination. Where charges specified in this Tariff are based upon the customer's demand, it is intended that such demand shall fairly represent the customer's actual demand that the Company must stand ready to serve. In the case of installations where the customer's regular use of service in the ordinary course of the customer's business is such that measurement over a thirty-minute interval does not result in a fair or equitable measure of the customer's demand, then the demand may be estimated from the known character of use and the rating data of the equipment connected, or from special tests. The intent of this provision is that the demand so determined shall fairly represent the demand that the Company must stand ready to serve.
- (b) Demand Waiver. When a customer wishes to conduct a test of equipment or process that is not part of the customer's normal operations, the customer may request that the Company waive the demand caused by that test, if that demand is the highest measured demand in the billing month. The Company will agree to such a waiver if the following conditions are met:
1. The Company's metering is of a type which allows for the determination of 30-minute demands; and
 2. The customer's request is in writing, and is received by the Company at least 15 business days before the date of the commencement of the proposed test. The request must specify the nature of the test, the size of the loads to be tested and the starting and ending times; and
 3. The Company determines that the tests are not a part of the customer's normal operations; and
 4. The test will not last for more than twelve (12) consecutive hours; and
 5. The customer has not conducted a test and received a demand waiver for a test pursuant to this rule within one year of the proposed test.

Upon receipt of a request for a demand waiver, the Company will inform the customer in writing within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the customer's request whether it will grant the proposed waiver.

(C) Denotes Change

RULES AND REGULATIONS (continued)

17.7 CALCULATION OF LATE FEE. Where a late fee is applicable, the amount of the late fee to be added to the unpaid balance shall be calculated by multiplying the unpaid past due balance, exclusive of any previous unpaid late fees, by the appropriate late fee rate.

17.8 TAX EXEMPTION. If a customer is tax exempt, the customer must provide a tax exempt form to PECO Energy and to its EGS, regardless of which billing option the customer chooses.

17.9 BILLING ERRORS. When the Company provides Consolidated EDC Billing, PECO Energy shall not be responsible for billing errors resulting from incorrect price information received from an EGS.

17.10 RETURNED PAYMENT CHARGE. If a check (electronic or paper) received in payment of a customer's account is returned to the Company unpaid or if upon a second attempt by the Company or its agent for payment the check is again returned unpaid, then the Company will add a returned payment charge to the customer's account in the amount of **\$20.00**. (C)

17.11 APPLICABILITY TO CUSTOMERS RESIDING AT PLACE OF BUSINESS. For purposes of all of the provisions of Rule 17, when a customer resides at a place of business or commercial establishment legitimately served pursuant to a commercial or industrial Base Rate, that is not a residential dwelling unit attached thereto, the customer is not thereby entitled to any of the protections in the Public Utility Code or the Commission's regulations implementing the Pennsylvania Public Utility Code, or to any of the provisions of these rules or this Tariff, that apply exclusively to payment terms for residential customers.

18. PAYMENT TERMS & TERMINATION OF SERVICE

18.1 NON-PAYMENT TERMINATION. When the Company is providing either Consolidated EDC Billing or Separate EDC Billing, the customer is subject to collection action, including termination of service (in accordance with the Pennsylvania Public Utility Code or the Commission's regulations, on the portion of the past due amount attributable to the Company's charges for: (1) service, (2) Energy and Capacity and (3) to Customer EGS Receivables purchased by the Company. Upon termination of service, the Company may also remove its equipment. Notice that complies with applicable Commission regulations shall conclusively be considered to be "reasonable" hereunder. Consistent with 52 PA Code §56.100, the Company will accept the following most current and valid documents as proof of household income: (1) income tax returns; (2) pay stubs; (3) benefit letters and governmental agency verification; (4) other forms to be accepted at the Company's discretion.

The customer must provide this information within 10 days of the Company's request. This information may also be used by the company to determine deposit requirements, payment arrangements, and any other income specific program.

18.2 PAYMENT TERMS. When the Company is providing either Consolidated EDC Billing or Separate EDC Billing, the Company will in accordance with Pennsylvania Public Utility Law and applicable Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission Regulations and Orders, negotiate payment arrangements on the portion of the past due amount attributable to its charges for: (1) service (2) Energy and Capacity and (3) to Customer EGS Receivables purchased by the Company. However, the Company will not negotiate payment arrangements on behalf of an EGS.

18.3 TERMINATION FOR CAUSE. The Company may terminate on reasonable notice if entry to the meter or meters is refused or if access thereto is obstructed or hazardous; or if utility service is taken without the knowledge or approval of the Company; or for other violation of these Rules and Regulations and/or applicable Commission rules, including those found at Pennsylvania Public Utility Code or the Commission's regulations.

18.4 SAFETY TERMINATION. The Company may terminate without notice if the customer's installation has become hazardous or defective.

18.5 DEFECTIVE EQUIPMENT TERMINATION. The Company may terminate without notice if the customer's equipment or use thereof might injuriously affect the equipment of the Company, or the Company's service to other customers; or if a certificate of approval is refused after a re-examination of the customer's installation by a competent inspection agency authorized to perform this service in the specific locality where service is provided.

18.6 TERMINATION FOR FRAUD. The Company may terminate without notice for abuse, fraud, material misrepresentation of the customer's identity, or tampering with the connections, the Company's meters, or other equipment of the Company.

18.7 RECONNECTION CHARGE. If service is terminated or discontinued by reason or act of the customer, the same customer, whether an applicant or a customer as defined at 66 Pa. C.S. § 1403, shall pay a reconnection charge prior to restoration of service at the same address within twelve months after discontinuance or termination. The reconnection charges, listed below, are based on the Company's current standard schedule of reconnection fees, which include direct labor costs, contractor costs, and material/transportation costs. In the case of fraud, the reconnection charge will also include allocated overheads, all investigative costs, and administrative costs as determined by the Company. All theft and fraud reconnections will be completed at the premise and will not be performed remotely.

	Reconnect Fees For Non-Payment	Reconnect Fees For Theft / Fraud
Electric Reconnect at the Meter	\$ 75.00	\$ 350.00
Electric Reconnect at Tap	\$ 260.00	\$ 1,180.00
Electric Reconnect - Underground dig	\$ 1,650.00	\$ 4,450.00
Electric with dual meters	\$ 100.00	\$ 350.00
Electric Remote Reconnect (one or dual meters)	\$ 20.00	N/A

(C) Denotes Change

**SUPPLEMENT NO. 139 TO
ELECTRIC PA. P.U.C. NO. 4**

Deleted: 8

PECO Energy Company

Electric Service Tariff

COMPANY OFFICE LOCATION

**2301 Market Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19101**

For List of Communities Served, See Page 4.

Issued November 18, 2015 Effective, January 17, 2016

Deleted: 6

Deleted: December 1

Deleted: 5

**ISSUED BY: C. L. Adams – President & CEO
PECO Energy Distribution Company
2301 MARKET STREET
PHILADELPHIA, PA. 19101**

NOTICE

Deleted: 8
Deleted: wo
Deleted: One

LIST OF CHANGES MADE BY THIS SUPPLEMENT

CREDIT – Third Revised Page No. 14

Changes to the timing and release of Residential deposits (rule 5.5) and changes to the Residential interest on deposits calculation (rule 5.6) due to Chapter 14 Order at Docket No. M-2014-2448824.

Formatted: Font color: Auto
Formatted: Font color: Auto
Formatted: Font color: Auto
Formatted: Font color: Auto

METERING – Fourth Revised Page No. 22

Established a fee for manual meter read (rule 14.11) requests by customers at the time of connect or disconnect as a result of the Chapter 14 Order at Docket No. M-2014-2448824.

Formatted: Font color: Auto
Formatted: Font color: Auto
Formatted: Font color: Auto

BILLING AND STANDARD PAYMENT OPTIONS – Sixth Revised Page No. 25

Added clarifying language that electronic payments are eligible for returned payment charges (rule 17.10).

Formatted: Font color: Auto
Formatted: Font color: Auto
Formatted: Font color: Auto
Formatted: Font color: Auto

Deleted: ¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
Deleted: 6
Deleted:
Deleted: December 1,
Deleted: 5

TABLE OF CONTENTS

List of Communities Served 4
 How to Use Loose-Leaf Tariff 5
 Definition of Terms and Explanation of Abbreviations 6², 7⁸, 9

RULES AND REGULATIONS:

1. The Tariff 10²
 2. Service Limitations 10²
 3. Customer's Installation 11¹
 4. Application for Service 12
 5. Credit 13²
 6. Private-Property Construction 14²
 7. Extensions 15¹, 16
 8. Rights-of-Way 17
 9. Introduction of Service 18¹
 10. Company Equipment 18¹
 11. Tariff and Contract Options 19¹
 12. Service Continuity 20¹
 13. Customer's Use of Service 21
 14. Metering 21
 15. Demand Determination 22²
 16. Meter Tests 23
 17. Billing and Standard Payment Options 24³
 18. Payment Terms & Termination of Service 25⁵
 19. Unfulfilled Contracts 25⁵
 20. Cancellation by Customer 26¹
 21. General 27²
 22. Rules For Designation of Procurement Class 27²
 23. EGS Switching 28²
 24. Load Data Exchange 29

STATE TAX ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE

Generation Supply Adjustment For Procurement Class 1, 2, 3 31²⁵, 32²⁴
 Generation Supply Adjustment For Procurement Class 4 33A¹²
 Reconciliation 34²
 Provision for Surcharge Recovery of Alternative Energy Portfolio Standard Costs 35⁵, 36⁴
NUCLEAR DECOMMISSIONING COST ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (NDCA) 37¹
 Provisions for Recovery of UNIVERSAL SERVICE FUND CHARGE (USFC) 38⁷
 Provisions for Recovery of SUPPLEMENTAL UNIVERSAL SERVICE FUND COSTS 39¹
PROVISION FOR THE RECOVERY OF CONSUMER EDUCATION PLAN COSTS 40⁴
TRANSMISSION SERVICE CHARGE 40A¹¹
NON-BYPASSABLE TRANSMISSION CHARGE (NBT) 40AA¹
SMART METER COST RECOVERY SURCHARGE 40B⁷
PROVISION FOR THE RECOVERY OF ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND CONSERVATION PROGRAM COSTS (EEPC) 40C⁷
 Provision for the Tax Accounting Repair Credit (TARC) 40D¹
PROVISION FOR THE RECOVERY OF ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND CONSERVATION PROGRAM COSTS PHASE II 40E

RATES:

Rate R Residence Service 41²²
 Rate R-H Residential Heating Service 43²²
 Rate RS-2 Net Metering 44¹, 45²
 Rate OP Off-Peak Service 46⁴
 Rate GS General Service 47¹⁷, 48³, 49²
 Rate PD Primary-Distribution Power 50¹⁴
 Rate HT High-Tension Power 51¹⁶
 Rate POL Private Outdoor Lighting 52⁵, 53
 Rate SL-S Street Lighting-Suburban Counties 57⁶, 58
 Rate SL-E Street Lighting Customer-Owned Facilities 59⁶, 60
 Rate TLCL Traffic Lighting Constant Load Service 61⁷
 Rate BLI Borderline Interchange Service 62
 Rate EP Electric Propulsion 63¹⁰
 Rate AL Alley Lighting in City of Philadelphia 64⁵

RIDERS:

Applicability Index of Riders 65³
 Auxiliary Service Rider 66³, 67², 68¹
 CAP Rider - Customer Assistance Program 69¹⁴, 70¹⁸
 Casualty Rider 71¹
 Commercial/Industrial Direct Load Control Program Rider 71A¹, 71B¹
 Construction Rider 72

Deleted: 8

Deleted: Eighteenth

Deleted: __

Deleted: __

Deleted: Seventeenth

Deleted: 2

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 6

Deleted:

Deleted: December 1, 2015

PECO Energy Company

RULES AND REGULATIONS (continued)

5.5 RETURN OF DEPOSIT. Deposits secured from a residential customer shall either be applied with interest to the customer's account or returned to the customer with interest in accordance with 66 Pa. C.S. §1404(C) and applicable Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission regulations. In cases of discontinuance or termination of service, deposits will be returned with accrued interest upon payment of all service charges and guarantees or with deduction of unpaid accounts. Deposits secured from a residential customer, plus accrued interest, which may be held until a timely payment history is established, are refunded when a ratepayer is not currently delinquent and has made on time and in full payments for service provided by the Company for 12 consecutive months. Deposits secured from a non-residential customer, plus accrued interest, which may be held until a timely payment history is established, are refunded when a ratepayer is not currently delinquent and has made on time and in full payments for service provided by the Company for 24 consecutive months. Any residential or commercial customer having secured the return of the deposit may be required to make another deposit in accordance with Commission statutes, regulations or Federal Bankruptcy Law if the Customer demonstrates bad credit or lacks creditworthiness subsequent to the return of the initial deposit.

- 5.6 INTEREST ON DEPOSIT.** The Company will allow simple interest on cash deposits calculated as follows:
- (1) with respect to residential accounts interest will be computed at the simple annual rate determined by the Secretary of Revenue for interest on the underpayment of tax under Section 806 of the Act of April 19, 1929 (P.L. 343, No. 176), known as the Fiscal Code;
 - (2) with respect to commercial and industrial accounts, at the lower of the Interest Index or six percent;

Deposits shall cease to bear interest upon discontinuance of service (or, if earlier, when the Company closes the account).

5.7 CREDIT INFORMATION.

CUSTOMERS: In addition to information required otherwise hereunder, customers for whom the Company provides Consolidated EDC Billing or Separate EDC Billing shall be required to provide to the Company with such credit information, as the Company requires. The Company may report to a national credit bureau on credit history associated with past due amounts.

APPLICANTS: The Company's credit and application procedures for applicants are as follows: (1) positive identification of applicant obtained from previous customer record or through one of the major credit reporting bureaus or through in-person identification; (2) determination of liability for a past due balance; (3) determination if a deposit is required based upon applicant's previous account history if available or through third party credit scoring of applicant.

The Company's credit scoring methodology and standards are as follows: The Company uses a commercially recognized credit scoring methodology that is within the range of generally accepted industry practice. The applicant's or customer's utility payment history determines the credit score. The Company uses this customer-specific credit score to either request or waive a security deposit.

5.8 APPLICABILITY TO CUSTOMERS RESIDING AT PLACE OF BUSINESS. For purposes of all of the provisions of this Rule 5, when a customer resides at a place of business or commercial establishment, legitimately served pursuant to a commercial or industrial rate schedule, that is not a residential dwelling unit attached thereto, the customer is not thereby entitled to any of the protections in the Pennsylvania Public Utility Code or the Commission's regulations implementing the Pennsylvania Public Utility Code, or to any of the provisions of these rules or this Tariff, that apply exclusively to deposits for residential customers.

6. PRIVATE PROPERTY CONSTRUCTION

6.1 COMPANY'S SERVICE LINES. Where the Company has distribution facilities of adequate capacity on the highway or in other trunk line location adjacent to the premises to be served, it will provide, own and maintain standard service-supply lines as follows: (a) **UNDERGROUND:**

Underground cable construction to a point approximately 18 inches inside the property line of the customer, except: (1) For secondary service to new residences or new apartment buildings, underground cable construction will be extended to a meter location or connection box located at the building or buildings, as designated by the Company and in accordance with Rule 7.3.

(2) The Company will make necessary repairs to customer-owned extensions of secondary service-supply lines for residential customers at no charge. If such customer-owned extension requires replacement, the Company will make the replacement and assume ownership of the service-supply line with the Company bearing the cost up to 200 feet in length and the customer bearing the cost for all additional length.

(b) **AERIAL:** A single span of aerial open wire or cable construction to the first suitable support of the customer, nominally 100 feet inside the property line of the customer. The customer's support shall be so located that the service span will be free of obstruction and adequately supported as required by the size and weight of the conductors.

6.2 SERVICE-SUPPLY ALTERATIONS. Changes related to a service-supply line or a meter owned by the Company, for the accommodation of the customer, shall be at the expense of the customer.

6.3 CUSTOMER'S SERVICE EXTENSION. The customer shall provide, own and maintain the service extension from the Company's service-supply lines to the receiving equipment.

6.4 METERS AND TRANSFORMERS. The Company will provide, own and maintain any meter or meters, and also the transformer or transformers (both potential and current type transformers), required in the supply of service of the current characteristics specified by the Base Rate or rider under which the service is provided, unless the customer receives Advanced Meter Services from an AMSP in that case such AMSP will install, provide, own, and/or maintain the Customer's meter or meters while the Company will continue to own the potential and current type transformers. The supply of transformers by the Company shall be limited to those required for a single standard transformation.

6.5 TRAILER PARKS. Where it is established by plans, development, use or other facts that the operation of a trailer park is predominantly to provide rental locations for non-transient trailers, with not less than two nor more than four such locations, the Company, upon written application of the trailer park operator and upon the receipt of an enabling agreement and of adequate rights-of-way, will construct, own and operate within the trailer park specified aerial electric energy, the trailer park operator being liable for payment of service to trailer park tenants not contracting in writing for service in their own names. The Company's obligation to install or extend such distribution facilities within the trailer park is limited to the investment warranted by the anticipated revenue. Alterations of such distribution facilities at the request of the park operator when not for the purpose of serving additional trailer rental locations will be at the cost of the trailer park operator. A trailer park operator desiring underground distribution facilities within a trailer park consisting of less than five locations must bear the excess cost incident thereto. Specifications and terms for such underground construction will be furnished by the Company on request. In new trailer parks consisting of five or more locations, underground distribution facilities will be extended in accordance with Rule 7.3.

(C) Denotes Change

Deleted: 35

Deleted: Second

Deleted: ___

Deleted: First

Formatted: Right: -0.4"

Formatted: Font: Bold

Deleted: Effective July 1, 2011, PECO will return the deposit on a non-residential account if the account incurred fewer than two late payments in the previous 24 months. The first annual review of the customer's payment status will occur 24 months after the initial deposit date.

Deleted:

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.56", Right: -0.5", No bullets or numbering

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: accrued prior to December 14, 2004,

Deleted: an

Formatted: Font: Bold

Deleted: average of the ¶
1-Year Treasury Bills for September, October and November of the previous year ("Interest Index"); ¶
(b)

Deleted: interest accrued on or after December 14, 2004, at an annual rate determined by the legal rate of interest pursuant to 66 Pa. C.S.A. § 1404(C)(6);

Deleted:

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.13", First line: 0.13"

Deleted: provided that interest accrued prior to April 14, 1995 shall be calculated at six percent.

Deleted: (C)

Deleted: February 1, 2012

Deleted:

Deleted: April 1, 2012

RULES AND REGULATIONS (continued)

Deleted: 114
Deleted: Third
Deleted:
Deleted: Second

14.4 POWER FACTOR MEASUREMENT. For customers for whom the Company is providing metering and meter reading or Advanced Meter Services, the Company reserves the right to measure the power factor of the customer's load, either by test or by permanently installed instruments. For customers for whom an AMSP is providing Advanced Meter Services, the Company reserves the right to require such AMSP to measure the power factor of the load of the customer on the same basis the Company measures the power factor of customers for which the Company provides metering and meter reading or Advanced Meter Services.

14.5 REVERSE REGISTRATION. The Company may, by ratchet or other device, control its meters to prevent reverse registration.

14.6 ESTIMATED USAGE. The kilowatt-hours and billing demands to be paid for may be determined by computation instead of by measurement in the case of installations having a fixed load or demand value controlled to operate for a definite number of hours each day.

14.7 METER READING INTERVALS. The Company will read its meters in accordance with Appendix C to the Joint Petition for Full Settlement and at scheduled regular intervals of one month. Monthly customer usage will not be prorated for seasonality. For customers for whom it provides Consolidated EDC Billing or Separate EDC Billing, the Company will render standard bills for the recorded use of service based upon the time interval between meter readings. EGS & EDC charges shall be based on the EDC defined meter reading route schedules. Only those bills which cover a period of service of less than 27 days or more than 34 days will be prorated. The Company will render "short period" bills as needed to ensure a customer can switch their electric service in accordance with the accelerated switching process final omitted rulemaking order that amends 52 Pa. Code, Ch. 57.172 – 57.179. See Dockets No. L-2014-2409383 and P-2014-2446292.

Deleted: (C)

14.8 ESTIMATED USAGE. For customers for whom the Company provides meter reading or Advanced Meter Reading Services, the Company shall estimate the amount of service supplied to premises where access to the meter is not available or if such estimate is necessary, and to installations at remote locations when warranted by the type of installation, regularity of usage, or other circumstances. For customers for whom it provides Consolidated EDC Billing or Separate EDC Billing, the Company will render bills in standard form based on such estimate and so marked, for the customer's acceptance. Meter readings will be secured from time to time and billing will be revised when they disclose that the estimate failed to approximate the actual usage. For residential customers, an actual meter reading will be obtained at least every six months in accordance with Commission regulations.

14.9 CUSTOMER SELECTED ADVANCED METERS. A customer may request either PECO Energy or an AMSP to have an Advanced Meter installed and have Advanced Meter Services provided pursuant to Appendix C of the Joint Petition for Full Settlement and any applicable rules adopted by the Commission. For an advanced meter to be deployed in the PECO Energy service territory, it must be included in the Commission's Advanced Meter Catalog, and indicated as eligible for deployment in the PECO Energy territory.

14.10 PROVISIONS FOR CUSTOMER REQUESTED SMART METERS. Once all necessary infrastructure is complete but not later than October 2012 a customer may request that PECO install a smart meter ahead of the planned schedule for their property however the customer must pay the incremental cost of installing the meter outside of the normal installation schedule. For residential and single phase commercial customers the cost is \$17. In the case of more complex meter arrangements the Company shall provide the estimated cost and the customer shall pay the cost prior to the installation.

14.11 MANUAL METER READING FEE Upon customer request, the Company will secure an in-person meter reading to confirm the accuracy of an automatic meter reading when a customer disconnects service or a new service request is received. The fee is \$45 and the Company will include this fee on the customer's or applicant's bill.

(C) Formatted: Right: 0.1"
Formatted: Font: Bold
Deleted: ¶

15. DEMAND DETERMINATION

15.1 MEASURED DEMANDS. Measured demands may be quantified by recording or indicating instruments showing, unless otherwise specified, the greatest 30-minute rate-of-use of energy, provided that in the case of hoists, elevators, welding machine, electric furnaces, or other installations where the use of electricity is intermittent or subject to violent fluctuation the demand may be fixed by special determination.

15.2 DEMAND DETERMINATION.

(a) **Special Determination.** Where charges specified in this Tariff are based upon the customer's demand, it is intended that such demand shall fairly represent the customer's actual demand that the Company must stand ready to serve. In the case of installations where the customer's regular use of service in the ordinary course of the customer's business is such that measurement over a thirty-minute interval does not result in a fair or equitable measure of the customer's demand, then the demand may be estimated from the known character of use and the rating data of the equipment connected, or from special tests. The intent of this provision is that the demand so determined shall fairly represent the demand that the Company must stand ready to serve.

(b) **Demand Waiver.** When a customer wishes to conduct a test of equipment or process that is not part of the customer's normal operations, the customer may request that the Company waive the demand caused by that test, if that demand is the highest measured demand in the billing month. The Company will agree to such a waiver if the following conditions are met:

1. The Company's metering is of a type which allows for the determination of 30-minute demands; and
2. The customer's request is in writing, and is received by the Company at least 15 business days before the date of the commencement of the proposed test. The request must specify the nature of the test, the size of the loads to be tested and the starting and ending times; and
3. The Company determines that the tests are not a part of the customer's normal operations; and
4. The test will not last for more than twelve (12) consecutive hours; and
5. The customer has not conducted a test and received a demand waiver for a test pursuant to this rule within one year of the proposed test.

Deleted: ¶
Formatted: Body Text, Hyphenate, Border:
Top: (Single solid line, Auto, 0.5 pt Line width),
Tab stops: Not at 0.25" + 0.6" + 1" + 1.4" +
1.8" + 2.2" + 2.6" + 6.5" + 7.2"

Upon receipt of a request for a demand waiver, the Company will inform the customer in writing within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the customer's request whether it will grant the proposed waiver.

(C) Denotes Change

Deleted: December 11, 2014
Deleted: December 15
Deleted: 4¶

Deleted: 61
 Deleted: Fifth
 Deleted: Fourth

PECO Energy Company

RULES AND REGULATIONS (continued)

17.7 CALCULATION OF LATE FEE. Where a late fee is applicable, the amount of the late fee to be added to the unpaid balance shall be calculated by multiplying the unpaid past due balance, exclusive of any previous unpaid late fees, by the appropriate late fee rate.

17.8 TAX EXEMPTION. If a customer is tax exempt, the customer must provide a tax exempt form to PECO Energy and to its EGS, regardless of which billing option the customer chooses.

17.9 BILLING ERRORS. When the Company provides Consolidated EDC Billing, PECO Energy shall not be responsible for billing errors resulting from incorrect price information received from an EGS.

17.10 RETURNED PAYMENT CHARGE. If a check (electronic or paper) received in payment of a customer's account is returned to the Company unpaid or if upon a second attempt by the Company or its agent for payment the check is again returned unpaid, then the Company will add a returned payment charge to the customer's account in the amount of \$20.00. (C)

Formatted: Right: 0"
 Deleted: CHECK
 Deleted:
 Deleted: check

17.11 APPLICABILITY TO CUSTOMERS RESIDING AT PLACE OF BUSINESS. For purposes of all of the provisions of Rule 17, when a customer resides at a place of business or commercial establishment legitimately served pursuant to a commercial or industrial Base Rate, that is not a residential dwelling unit attached thereto, the customer is not thereby entitled to any of the protections in the Public Utility Code or the Commission's regulations implementing the Pennsylvania Public Utility Code, or to any of the provisions of these rules or this Tariff, that apply exclusively to payment terms for residential customers.

18. PAYMENT TERMS & TERMINATION OF SERVICE

18.1 NON-PAYMENT TERMINATION. When the Company is providing either Consolidated EDC Billing or Separate EDC Billing, the customer is subject to collection action, including termination of service (in accordance with the Pennsylvania Public Utility Code or the Commission's regulations, on the portion of the past due amount attributable to the Company's charges for: (1) service, (2) Energy and Capacity and (3) to Customer EGS Receivables purchased by the Company. Upon termination of service, the Company may also remove its equipment. Notice that complies with applicable Commission regulations shall conclusively be considered to be "reasonable" hereunder. Consistent with 52 PA Code §56.100, the Company will accept the following most current and valid documents as proof of household income: (1) income tax returns; (2) pay stubs; (3) benefit letters and governmental agency verification; (4) other forms to be accepted at the Company's discretion.

The customer must provide this information within 10 days of the Company's request. This information may also be used by the company to determine deposit requirements, payment arrangements, and any other income specific program.

18.2 PAYMENT TERMS. When the Company is providing either Consolidated EDC Billing or Separate EDC Billing, the Company will in accordance with Pennsylvania Public Utility Law and applicable Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission Regulations and Orders, negotiate payment arrangements on the portion of the past due amount attributable to its charges for: (1) service (2) Energy and Capacity and (3) to Customer EGS Receivables purchased by the Company. However, the Company will not negotiate payment arrangements on behalf of an EGS.

18.3 TERMINATION FOR CAUSE. The Company may terminate on reasonable notice if entry to the meter or meters is refused or if access thereto is obstructed or hazardous; or if utility service is taken without the knowledge or approval of the Company; or for other violation of these Rules and Regulations and/or applicable Commission rules, including those found at Pennsylvania Public Utility Code or the Commission's regulations.

18.4 SAFETY TERMINATION. The Company may terminate without notice if the customer's installation has become hazardous or defective.

18.5 DEFECTIVE EQUIPMENT TERMINATION. The Company may terminate without notice if the customer's equipment or use thereof might injuriously affect the equipment of the Company, or the Company's service to other customers; or if a certificate of approval is refused after a re-examination of the customer's installation by a competent inspection agency authorized to perform this service in the specific locality where service is provided.

18.6 TERMINATION FOR FRAUD. The Company may terminate without notice for abuse, fraud, material misrepresentation of the customer's identity, or tampering with the connections, the Company's meters, or other equipment of the Company.

18.7 RECONNECTION CHARGE. If service is terminated or discontinued by reason or act of the customer, the same customer, whether an applicant or a customer as defined at 66 Pa. C.S. § 1403, shall pay a reconnection charge prior to restoration of service at the same address within twelve months after discontinuance or termination. The reconnection charges, listed below, are based on the Company's current standard schedule of reconnection fees, which include direct labor costs, contractor costs, and material/transportation costs. In the case of fraud, the reconnection charge will also include allocated overheads, all investigative costs, and administrative costs as determined by the Company. All theft and fraud reconnections will be completed at the premise and will not be performed remotely.

Deleted: (C)

	Reconnect Fees For Non-Payment	Reconnect Fees For Theft / Fraud
Electric Reconnect at the Meter	\$ 75.00	\$ 350.00
Electric Reconnect at Tap	\$ 260.00	\$ 1,180.00
Electric Reconnect - Underground dig	\$ 1,650.00	\$ 4,450.00
Electric with dual meters	\$ 100.00	\$ 350.00
Electric Remote Reconnect (one or dual meters)	\$ 20.00	N/A

(C) Denotes Change

Deleted: (C)
 Deleted: December 14, 2012
 Deleted: February 14, 2013